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None of these dividends are foreign sourced.

Current period 30 June 2017 
Previous corresponding period 30 June 2016

$000
Revenue from ordinary activities Down 7.0% to 110,748
Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members Down 27.7% to 3,741
Net profit for the period attributable to members Down 27.7% to 3,741
Underlying net profit from ordinary activities after tax  1. Down 6.4% to 4,839

Earnings per share Down 29.2% to 1.7 cents
Underlying earnings per share  1. Down 8.3% to 2.2 cents

Amount per security Franked amount per  
security at 30% tax

Interim dividend (fully franked) 0.6 cents 0.6 cents
Final dividend (fully franked) 0.6 cents 0.6 cents

Final dividend details
Record date to determine entitlement to the dividend   29 September 2017
Payment date for final dividend  3 November 2017
Total dividend payable  $1,300,342

Appendix 4E and Annual Report 

LEGEND CORPORATION LIMITED

Current period Previous corresponding period
Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share 8.7 cents 7.4 cents

A dividend reinvestment plan is not in operation.

Dividends

Net Tangible Asset Backing

Results for Announcement 
to the Market
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30 June 2017 
$000

30 June 2016 
$000

Change

Income
Sales revenue 110,697 119,039 (7.0%)
Cost of goods sold (65,839) (70,584)  (6.7%)
Gross profit 44,858 48,455 (7.4%)
Gross profit margin 40.5% 40.7%
EBITDA 10,447 11,180 (6.6%)
EBITDA margin 9.4% 9.4%
EBIT 6,982 8,940 (21.9%)
EBIT margin 6.3% 7.5%
NPBT 5,834 7,552 (22.7%)
NPBT margin 5.3% 6.3%
NPAT 3,741 5,171 (27.7%)
NPAT margin 3.4% 4.3%
Impairment of assets net of tax1 1,098 - 100.0%
Underlying NPAT 1 4,839 5,171 (6.4%)
Underlying NPAT margin 4.4% 4.3%
Earnings per share 1.7 cents 2.4 cents (29.2%)
Underlying earnings per share1 2.2 cents 2.4 cents (8.3%)
Dividends paid 1.2 cents 1.6 cents (25.0%)
Dividends announced 0.6 cents 0.6 cents 0%

Cash Flow
Operating cash flow 10,535 9,208 14.4%

Financial Position
Net assets 69,535 68,513 1.5%
Net debt (11,818) (17,871) 33.9%

Financial Summary

Underlying Net Profit after Tax attributable to members of $4.8 million (2016: $5.2 million) has been calculated as; NPAT for the year of $3.7 million adjusted for the 
after tax non-cash impact of the impairment of assets of our New Zealand Electrical, Power and Infrastructure division.  Assets impaired included; goodwill of $641,000, 
other intangible assets of $364,000, and plant and equipment of $93,000. 

Underlying NPAT is a non-IFRS measure used by the Company which is relevant because it is consistent with measures used internally by management and by some 
in the investment community to assess the operating performance of the business. The non-IFRS measure has not been subject to audit or review.

1. Underlying NPAT - Impairment of assets:
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30 June 2017 
$000

30 June 2016 
$000

NPAT 3,741 5,171
Income tax expense 2,093 2,381
NPBT 5,834 7,552
Interest revenue (51) (62)
Interest expense 849 1,051
Implied interest expense on deferred settlement 350 399
EBIT 6,982 8,940
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,175 2,240
Impairment of assets 1,290 -
EBITDA 10,447 11,180

Appendix 4E and Annual Report 

LEGEND CORPORATION LIMITED

Reconciliation of profit
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Dear Shareholders, 
 
On behalf of the Directors I am pleased to report the results for Legend for the year ended 30 June 2017. 
 
The company has reported annual revenue of $110.7 million. In our established markets we have seen an increase in 
residential construction activity which has been offset by the continuing decline in power infrastructure and network 
investment.  Our gas and plumbing business has achieved modest growth with the net result across all our business being 
a reduction in overall revenue of 7%. 
 
Gross Margins have been maintained at 40.5% while overhead expenses have been reduced by $2.8 million or 8%.  The 
cost reductions have been achieved, in part, by the consolidation of System Control Engineering in Melbourne with our 
other operations into a single shared facility. These operational efficiencies will continue into FY18. 
 
Net Profit after Tax (NPAT) was $3.7 million, down on the prior year due largely to the non-cash impact of the impairment 
of assets of goodwill, other intangible assets, and plant and equipment of $1.1 million in our New Zealand Electrical, 
Power and Infrastructure division.  Underlying NPAT was $4.8 million, down 6% on the previous year.  Our second half 
business performance showed a small improvement on the first half and we expect this to continue into FY18. 
 
FY17 operating cash flow was stronger, up 14% on last year (to $10.5 million) due largely to an inventory reduction of 
$4.7 million.  The company balance sheet is in a strong position with total net assets (total assets less total liabilities) of 
$69.5 million or 32 cents per share. 
 
Our CEO Mr. Bradley Dowe has more detail on our business and operating performance in that section of this  
annual report. 
 
In May the company paid an interim dividend of 0.6 cents per share.  I am pleased to advise that the full year dividend will 
be 0.6 cents per share to all shareholders of record on 29 September 2017 and payable on 3 November 2017. 
 
As stated earlier our outlook for the coming year is for an improved profit and we expect to achieve this through an 
increase in revenue across all business segments combined with a contribution from our on-line sales channel and 
increasing demand for energy efficient products. 
 
On behalf of the Directors I wish to thank Bradley Dowe, his senior management team and all employees, for their hard 
work during the year.  I also thank our customers and shareholders for their continuing support for Legend Corporation.

 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Bruce E Higgins 
Chairman 
Legend Corporation Limited 
 
23 August 2017

Chairman’s 
Report
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Chief Executive
Officer’s 
Report

Dear Shareholders,

LEGEND RETURNS TO GROWTH IN SECOND HALF OF FY17

I am pleased to report earnings for the second half of FY17 have improved on both the underlying Net Profit after Tax 
(NPAT) of the first half of FY17 and second half of FY16. 
 
Underlying NPAT for the year, excluding the impairment charge recognised during the first half, was $4.8 million (2016: 
$5.2 million).

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

31 Dec 2015 30 June 2016 31 Dec 2016 30 June 2017

-

UNDERLYING NPAT BY HALF YEAR

UNDERLYING NPAT

FY17 FY16 Change
$000 $000 $000 %

First Half 2,105 3,185 (1,080) (34%)

Second Half 2,734 1,986 748 38%

Full Year 4,839 5,171 (332) (6%)

$0
00
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 The year has seen a strong focus on cost reduction and efficiency through:  

• The consolidation of six Victorian office and warehousing sites into a single facility realising significant manpower	
  savings. 
 
• Right-sizing of sales teams to match current and expected future market demands. 
 
• The consolidation of Sydney internal sales and NATA laboratories with lower cost Adelaide based facilities. 
 
• Revisions to materials requirement planning and targeted product sales promotions to reduce stock holding and improve 	
  working capital.

Efficiency and cost reduction initiatives have delivered $2.8 million in year on year overhead expense savings, 8% down 
on the prior corresponding period (pcp), with $1.6 million of these savings achieved in the second half of FY17. 
 
The rationalisation of slow moving lines and improved ordering to meet evolving product mix and market demand resulted 
in a stock reduction of $4.7 million during the year. This was a major contributor to the improved operating cash flow of 
$10.5 million, up 14% on pcp. 

 
2017 FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue for the period was $110.7 million, 7% down on the prior year (2016: $119.0 million).  Gross profit was also down 
7% with margins maintained period on period at 41% (2016: 41%).  
 
Gas and Plumbing continued to grow with revenue up 2% on pcp.  Revenue from Electrical, Power and Infrastructure was 
down 7% on pcp, and Innovative Electrical Solutions down 32%. 
 
Positive signs for Electrical, Power and Infrastructure were seen during the second half of the year with our power and 
infrastructure team delivering revenue growth half on half, the first time since FY14.  
 
Innovative Electrical Solutions appears well placed to deliver improved revenue in FY18 as a major client’s consumption 
of product returns to historical levels. 
 
Gross profit margin for the Group was maintained, with a marginal improvement in the Gas and Plumbing segment as 
work continues to bring margins for this segment in line with the remainder of the Group. 

Revenue & Gross Profit by Half Year

41.9%
39.5% 40.5% 40.5%
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Annual overhead expenses were down $2.8 million or 8% to $34.5 million (2016: $37.4 million), with $1.6 million of the 
reduction occurring in the second half of the year. 
 
A major contributor to the cost reduction was the consolidation of the operations of System Control Engineering (SCE). 
The physical relocation of operations into shared facilities delivered significant head count reductions along with further 
operational efficiencies. 
 
Work has also continued across the Group on matching staffing to the current and expected market requirements.

Total CAPEX for the year was $0.9 million (2016: $1.2 million), the bulk of the expenditure related to the set-up of our new 
Victorian premises. 
 
Depreciation of $1.6 million for the year was up 14% on pcp, whilst amortisation of intangible assets including customer 
lists, intellectual property and restraint of trade agreements was down 28% to $0.6 million (2016: $0.9 million).

Overhead Expenses by Half Year

Capital Expenditure (CAPEX) & Depreciation and Amortisation by Half Year
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Gross Debt decreased by $3.7 million to $19.1 million.  
 
Net debt was $11.8 million at year end (2016: $17.9 million), a low 1.1 times EBITDA. 
 
Banking facilities with Australian and New Zealand Banking Group Limited were renewed on 1 May 2017 and extended 
until 30 April 2019.  
 
These facilities provide additional capacity for both organic and acquisitive growth.

FY17 Operating cash flow increased 14% on pcp to $10.5 million (2016: $9.2 million).  
 
We expect operating cash to remain strong during FY18 as we see the benefits of continued improvement in working 
capital management.  Stock management remains an ongoing focus for further cash generation as does improved terms 
from both clients and suppliers. 

Debt to EBITDA by Half Year

Operating Cash Flow by Half Year

Gross Debt to EBITDA
Net Bank Debt to EBITDA
Gross Debt
Net Bank Debt
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OVERVIEW BY SEGMENT 

Electrical, Power and Infrastructure 
This segment’s earnings in the past have been closely tied to residential and commercial building approvals, engineering construction 
associated with resources and capital works associated with power networks and infrastructure construction. 
 
While Electrical has seen very strong activity in residential construction, this has been more than offset by significant reductions in 
activity and reduced demand from engineering construction associated with resources. While this resulted in further revenue contraction 
we believe the negative effects of these major resource engineering projects is complete and we anticipate that this will not impact 
future profits. 
 
Expenditure on power networks, in particular base load power generation and power transmission, has remained at very low levels with 
no change in revenue on the pcp, however modest growth is expected in FY18. 
 
Infrastructure has record levels of approvals although projects have been slow to start and whilst significant income is expected into the 
future there was very little revenue from this source in FY17. 
 
Revenue for this segment was 7% lower at $74.1 million (2016: $79.7 million).   
 
Gross margins were slightly higher year on year with overhead expenses down 6%.  EBITDA was down 2% to $4.7 million (2016: $4.8 
million). 
 
FY18 will see further additions to our product range, a wider client base and more demand creation for our brands.  
 
 
Innovative Electrical Solutions  
Segment revenue was down 31% to $8.4 million (2016: $12.3 million). This was driven by the absence of a major client’s consumption 
of certain product due to a buy ahead in prior years. We expect consumption to resume by the second half of FY18.   
 
The development of new complete products rather than components continues to be the key focus of this segment. Further product 
launches will be made in the coming year which are expected to result in revenue growth. 
 
EBITDA was down 54% to $1.9 million (2016: $4.2 million), a result of lower revenue. This segment’s reduced earnings on the pcp has 
been the single most significant factor reducing overall earnings growth in FY17. 
 
 
Gas and Plumbing  
This segment contributed $30.1 million in revenue for the year, up 2% on pcp. 

EBITDA for the year was $3.8 million up 76% (2016: $2.1 million), a result of margin improvements driven by Legend’s ERP and sales 
system, while overhead expenses reduced 13% a result of integration with Legend’s infrastructure. 
 
FY17 saw a new major trade centre opened as part of the consolidation of facilities in Melbourne and this trade centre is expected to 
continue to deliver revenue growth into FY18. 
 
 
Acquisitions 
Whilst no acquisitions were completed in FY17, the review and consideration of opportunities aligned with company strategy that offer 
accretive growth continues to be a key area of management focus. 
 
 
Product Innovation 
We continue to invest in the design and development of products targeting margin and segment growth opportunities with product 
development of energy efficiency for lighting and power management.  
 
We also continue our range expansion of specialised hydraulic tools and jointing products including resin, heatshrink and coldshrink 
which are complementary to our core range of lugs, links and connectors. FY17 saw the first major project win for our PowerJoint range 
on the Victorian  Metro Trains project. 
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FY18 will see the addition of significant new product ranges complimentary to our existing products and markets.  
 
 
Quality Standards Certification 
Legend is committed to supplying quality products and operates a major NATA laboratory in Adelaide to assure our products are 
performance tested and approved to the Australian and New Zealand and International standards relevant to their application. 
 
Currently Legend is accredited to the ISO17025 Laboratory Quality Management System, for the test and issue of accredited NATA 
reports to the relevant clauses of AS1154, AS3766, AZ/NZS 4437, AS/NZS 61210, IEC 60512-2, IEC 60512-8, BS 6121-1, AS/NZS 
4396, BS-EN 61238-1, BS 4579-2, IEEE 837.  
 
AS/NZS 4801 OH&S certification. 
 
ISO14001, the Environmental Management Systems. 
 
 
People Talent, Workplace and Training 
We recognize that our people are our most important asset.  Securing and retaining the very best people is critical to both the growth 
and development of our business. 
 
Recruitment within Legend Corporation is advertised internally prior to being advertised externally as a means of providing our 
employees further career advancement opportunities.  
 
Training and development of our team members is encouraged to ensure that succession planning is provided for. 
 
Training currently undertaken includes:

• Manual Handling 
• Personal Protective Equipment 
• Bullying in the workplace 
• Forklift Safety 
• Renewal of forklift licenses 
• First Aid 
• Testing and Tagging 
• Fringe Benefits 
• Temperature Measurement – Engineering 
• Emergency Evacuation Procedures 
• Return to Work Coordinators 
• WHS Committee – Chairman 
• Dangerous Goods 
• Bullying and Harassment 
• Tension testing 
• Advance Diploma – Electronics & Communications – Apprenticeship 
• IPC Specialist – Rework & Repair 
• Bachelor of Business Management

Legend encourages work life balance through a number of initiatives that supports psychological and physical health and well-being, 
thereby contributing to the improvement of individual and organisational outcomes including: 

•	 Return from Parental Leave and other changes to working hours to achieve work life balance 
•	 Full Time to Part time transitional employment on return from parental leave 
•	 Flexible working hours 
•	 Working from home 
•	 Compressed working week
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Legend Corporation offers high quality onsite childcare facilities in New South Wales and South Australia. These facilities are offered to 
employees with children under school age at no cost. The benefits of having on site child minding facilities include: 
•	 Lower turnover and improved retention of staff 
•	 Higher levels of productivity, performance, commitment, morale, job satisfaction and diversity

Legend Corporation encourages its people to participate in healthy lifestyle programs, supported by the organization.  Additional 
benefits provided to our people include: 
•	 Free Gym Membership 
•	 Annual Health Assessments 
•	 Fresh seasonal fruit provided to all staff fortnightly 
 
The above initiatives have seen an improvement in absenteeism and added health awareness from our people choosing to participate. 
 
All of these initiatives raise the profile of Legend as an ‘employer of choice’.  
 
 
Gender diversity 
Legend supports gender diversity within the workforce.  
 
Whilst the company continues to be successfully overseen by only three male directors who provide a skill set which is appropriate for 
the Company’s present needs, in the balance of the company there is significant involvement of both female and male employees at 
each level of operations.

2017 2016
Percentage of Employment Percentage of Employment

Female Male Female Male
Board 0 100 0 100

Management, Finance, Administration 52 48 56 44

Other 35 65 26 74

Total 39 61 34 66

Health & Safety 
The Health and Safety of our people is a key priority within our business.  
 
Management is committed to continual improvement of health and safety through the implementation of training, safety systems and 
monitoring in all our workplaces. 
 
The Group has a low rate of lost time through injury.  A total of 8 lost time injuries were reported for the year with an average lost 
time injury frequency rate of 9.1 against a national warehouse/storage industry average of 12.7 which we use as a benchmark. The 
achievement of no lost time injuries continues to be the Company’s objective. 
 
During the year Legend obtained AS/NZS 4801 certification, the Occupational Health and Safety Standard, as part of its commitment to 
improving the safety and welfare of all its employees and customers. 
 
Community Service 
In addition to Legend’s participation in Loud Shirt Day to raise awareness for deaf children in need and the Cancer Council’s Biggest 
Morning Tea, over the past year Legend has contributed to: 
 
• Australian Lions Club to fund 50 underprivileged children to attend the circus. 
• Royal Flying Doctors Service Outback Trek to support the great work of the RFDS in delivering emergency and primary aero-medical 
services to rural and remote Australia. 
 
Environment 
Legend is committed to developing processes and systems that seek to minimize any adverse environmental impacts. 
Last financial year, Legend attained certification to ISO14001, the Environmental Management Systems standard, ensuring that all 
products are designed and manufactured to the relevant Australian and international environmental regulations and standards. Legend 
is also a signatory to the Australian Packaging Covenant, which promotes a strong recycling and reuse culture within the organisation. 
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A strong platform for future growth. 
Our core strategy to maintain and extend our leadership remains; quality, range, availability, service and innovation.  
 
Our markets have been challenging in recent years due to an extra ordinary confluence including the extended impact of the major 
decline in Australian resources engineering construction which has offset the gains from the residential construction boom. The same 
period saw capital works deferred by most power utilities and major infrastructure projects delayed. A major client in our innovative 
electrical segment’s prior period buying ahead in FY15 and FY16 severely impacted FY17 earnings. 
 
We believe we have turned an important corner in the second half of FY17 with a return to growth with each of our markets having a 
more positive outlook. 
 
Our focus on cost reduction and efficiency has been very successful in FY17 as has cash generation and debt reduction. New online 
sales platforms are expected to be significant contributors to future income. 
 
Gas and Plumbing has performed well in FY17 and earnings growth driven by cost reduction and efficiency has been excellent. We 
expect further growth in FY18. 
 
Our strong balance sheet, modest net debt levels and prudent management of operating costs provide a strong platform for organic and 
acquisitive growth in the year ahead. 
 
Our outlook for FY18 is for growth in our existing businesses and growth through acquisition. 
 
I would like to extend my thanks to our client business partners, suppliers and shareholders for their continued support.

I take this opportunity to thank all of our staff and board members for their passion and commitment to quality, service and excellence.  I 
am very proud to work with them all. 
 
 
Yours Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Brad Dowe 
Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director 
Legend Corporation Limited 
 
23 August 2017
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Director’s Report
The Directors of Legend Corporation Limited (‘Legend’ or ‘the company’) present their Report together with the financial statements of 
the consolidated entity, being Legend and its controlled entities (‘the Group’) for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

Bruce E Higgins BEng, CPEng, MBA, FAICD 
Chairman/Independent Non-Executive Director 
Director since October 2007 
 
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee and Member of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee 
 
Mr Higgins is an experienced non-executive director, chairman and former chief executive of both private and listed companies within 
Australia and internationally, spanning over 25 years in diverse companies ranging from engineering, manufacturing and professional 
services to larger contracting businesses.  Bruce was the recipient of the Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year” award in the 
Southern California region, June 2005. 
 
Directorships held in other listed entities: 
• Chairman of Hub24 Limited (appointed October 2012) 
 
Previous directorships held in the last three years: 
• Chairman of Q Technology Group Limited (appointed December 2010, resigned December 2014) 
 
Interest in shares held directly or indirectly: 
• 3,677,150 (2016: 3,677,150)  
 
Interest in options: 
• None

Bradley R Dowe BSc (Computer Science) 
Managing Director and CEO 
Director since October 2002 
 
Member of the Nominations Committee 
 
Mr Dowe is the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Legend and has been working in the field of engineering for over 30 years.  His 
experience covers all facets of engineering, electronics, manufacturing processes, software system development and international 
business operations. 
 
Directorships held in other listed entities: 
• None 
 
Previous directorships held in the last three years: 
• None 
 
Interest in shares held directly or indirectly:

• 63,261,896 (2016: 62,966,896) 
 
Interest in options: 
• None

The following persons were Directors of Legend during or since the end of the financial year:
Directors Details
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Meetings of Directors 
 
During the financial year, 15 meetings of Directors (including Committees of Directors) were held. Attendances by each Director during 
the year are detailed in the table below.

Board Meetings Audit Committee 
Meetings

Remuneration 
Committee Meetings

Nomination 
Committee Meetings

A B A B A B A B

Bruce Higgins 10 10 3 3 2 2 - -

Bradley Dowe 10 10 * * * * - -

Ian Fraser 9 10 3 3 2 2 - -

A - Number of meetings attended
B - Number of meetings held during the time the Director held office or was a member of the Committee during the year
*  - Not a member of the relevant committee

Ian L Fraser FCPA, FAICD 
Independent Non-Executive Director 
Director since January 2008 
 
Chairman of the Audit & Risk Management Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee and Nominations 
Committee 
 
Mr Fraser has extensive corporate experience particularly in Australian manufacturing.  Ian has held several senior management 
positions including Managing Director of Pioneer Sugar Mills Limited, Clyde Industries Limited, Australian Chemical Holdings Limited 
and TNT Australia Pty Ltd.  Ian also has substantial international experience having lived and worked in South East Asia and the United 
States.  
 
Directorships held in other listed entities: 
• None 
 
Previous directorships held in the last three years: 
• Structural Systems Limited (appointed May 2004, resigned November 2014) 
 
Interest in shares held directly or indirectly: 
• 840,00 (2016: 840,000) 
 
Interest in options: 
• None

Graham Seppelt 
Company Secretary 
 
Mr Seppelt was appointed as Company Secretary in January 2005.  Graham has over 40 years’ experience and a wide exposure to a 
range of industries as a senior manager and contract accountant in corporate advisory roles.  He is also company secretary for ASX 
listed BSA Limited.
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Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Consolidated Group during the financial year were: 

•	 The distribution of cable accessories and tools servicing the electrical wholesale industry;

•	 The design and sale of specialised connectors and cable assemblies to power utilities and infrastructure project 		
   contractors;

•	 The distribution of gas and plumbing tools, products and spare parts to residential, commercial and industrial projects;

•	 The distribution of computer room accessories; and

•	 The design and sale of integrated circuits (semiconductors) and hybrids for consumer electrical products, medical 	
   devices and industrial electronic components. 

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Consolidated Group’s principal activities during the financial year.

OPERATING RESULTS AND REVIEW OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR

Operating Results

Net Profit after Tax (NPAT) for the Group was $3,741,000 (2016: $5,171,00).  This result included the after tax non-
cash impairment charge for the assets of our New Zealand Electrical, Power and Infrastructure division of $1,098,000.  
Excluding the impact of this charge, NPAT for the year was $4,839,000, a decrease of 6% on the prior year (2016: 
$5,171,000). 

Revenue from the sale of goods was down 7% on the prior corresponding period (pcp) with gross profit down 7% on 
margins of 40.5% compared to 40.7% pcp. 

Overhead expenses were down $2,845,000 or 8% on pcp.     

Depreciation and amortisation was down $65,000 or 4%, and finance costs including implied interest down $251,000 or 
17%. 

In addition to the information disclosed in the following Review of Operations, readers are referred to the Chief Executive 
Officer’s Report (pages 10 to 17) for further details and analysis of the Group’s performance and financial position.

Review of Operations

Electrical, Power and Infrastructure

Segment revenue of $74,120,000 was 7% lower on pcp (2016: $79,740,000).  

Gross margin was slightly higher year on year with overhead expenses down 6%.  Earnings before Interest, Taxation, 
Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) were down 2% to $4,735,000 (2016: $4,829,000).

Innovative Electrical Solutions

Segment revenue was down 31% to $8,420,000 (2016: $12,286,000).   

EBITDA was down 54% to $1,929,000 (2016: $4,203,000) on account of the lower revenue.

Plumbing and Gas

Segment revenue was up 2% to $30,127,000 (2016: $29,576,000). 

EBITDA for the year was $3,784,000 up 76% (2016: $2,148,000) with improved margins and a 13% reduction in  
overhead expenses. 

Financial Position

As at 30 June 2017 net assets of the Group were $69,535,000, an increase of $1,022,000 on the prior year. 
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Debt repayments for the year totalled $4,516,000 with $800,000 in additional debt drawn to partly fund the second 
deferred payment for the acquisition of System Control Engineering in FY15.  Net bank debt of $11,818,000 at year end 
remains conservative against earnings at 1.1 times EBITDA.

 
The Group executed a new Corporate Letter of Offer (CLO) with Australian and New Zealand Banking Group Limited 
effective 1 May 2017.  Debt facilities offered under the CLO expire 30 April 2019. 
 
 
Significant Changes in State of Affairs

There were no significant changes within the Group during the year. 

Unissued Shares Under Options

During the year ended 30 June 2017 and to the date of this report no shares have been issued on the exercise of options. 

At the date of this report, there are no unissued ordinary shares under option of Legend Corporation Limited or any 
controlled entity within the Group. 

For details of options issued to directors and executives as remuneration, refer to the Remuneration Report.

Dividends

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Directors have declared a fully franked final dividend of $1,300,342 (0.6 
cents per share) to be paid 3 November 2017 (2016: $1,310,000)

Events Arising Since the End of the Reporting Period

Apart from the final dividend declared and shared cancelled under the GLIP as noted in the Remuneration Report, there 
are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year that have significantly affected 
or may significantly affect either:

•  The Group’s operations in future financial years;

•  The results of those operations in future financial years; or

•  The Group’s state of affairs in future financial years.  
 

Future Development, Prospective and Business Strategies

The Group will continue its focus on business initiatives to meet customer needs whilst continuing to manage debt and 
costs, improving inventory performance and quality of earnings.  The Group is actively seeking new opportunities within 
our existing resources. 

The Directors are confident that the Group is well placed for the future. 
 
 
Environmental Issues

The Group was not subject to any particular or significant environmental regulations of the Commonwealth, individual 
States or Territories of Australia during the financial year. 
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Indemnifying Officers or Auditor

During the year, the Company paid a premium to insure officers of the Group.  The officers of the Group covered by the 
insurance policy include all Directors.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought 
against the officers in their capacity as officers of the Group, and any other payments arising from liabilities incurred by 
the officers in connection with such proceedings, other than where such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a willful 
breach of duty by the officers or the improper use by the officer of their position or of information to gain advantage for 
themselves or someone else to cause detriment to the Group. 

Details of the amount of the premium paid in respect of insurance policies are not disclosed as such disclosure is 
prohibited under the terms of the contract. 

The Group has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted by law, 
indemnified or agreed to indemnify any current or former officer or auditor of the Group against a liability incurred as such 
by an officer or auditor. 

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings 
on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those proceedings. 

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

Non-audit Services

During the year, KPMG, the Company’s auditors, performed certain other services in addition to their statutory audit 
duties. 

The Board has considered the non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor and, in accordance with written 
advice provided by resolution of the Audit and Risk Committee, is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services 
during the year is compatible with, and did not compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations 
Act 2001 for the following reasons: 

• All non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the Company and have been 
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee to ensure they do not impact upon the impartiality and objectivity of the auditor.

• The non-audit services do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting 
in a management or decision-making capacity for the Company, acting as an advocate for the Company or jointly sharing 
risks and rewards. 
 
Details of the amounts paid to the auditors of the Company, KPMG, and its related practices for audit and non-audit 
services provided during the year are set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

 
Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2017 as required under section 307C of the 
Corporations Act 2001 has been received and can be found on page 28, which forms part of this report. 
 

Rounding of Amounts

Legend Corporation Limited has relied on the relief available under ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/ Directors 
Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and therefore amounts contained in this report and in the financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest $1,000 (where rounding is applicable), or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar under the option 
permitted in the Class Order. 
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Remuneration Report (Audited)
The Directors of Legend Corporation Limited (‘the Group’) present the Remuneration Report prepared in accordance with 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:

a.	 Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

b.	 Details of remuneration

c.	 Service agreements

d.	 Share-based remuneration

e.	 Other information.

 

a. Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration

The principles of the Group’s executive strategy, supporting incentive programs and frameworks are: 

• To align rewards to business outcomes that deliver value to shareholders;

• To drive a high-performance culture by setting challenging objectives and rewarding high performing individuals; and

• To ensure remuneration is competitive in the relevant employment market place to support the attraction, motivation and 
retention of executive talent. 

The Group has structured a remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary to the reward strategy 
of the Group. 
 
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee which operates in accordance with its charter as approved by the 
Board and is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the directors and the executive 
team. 
 
The Committee may engage independent external consultants and advisors to provide any necessary information to assist 
in the discharge of its responsibilities. 

The remuneration structure that has been adopted by the Group consists of the following components: 
 
• Fixed remuneration being annual salary; 

• Short term incentives, being employee share schemes and bonuses; and

• Long term incentives, being performance based, payable in arrears with cash and shares. 

The Remuneration Committee assesses the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration on a periodic basis 
by reference to recent employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit 
from the retention of a high quality Board and executive team. 
 
The payment of bonuses, shares, share options and other incentive payments are reviewed by the Remuneration 
Committee annually as part of the review of executive remuneration and a recommendation is put to the Board for 
approval. All bonuses, shares, options and incentives must be linked to pre-determined performance criteria.



The Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) for the Executive Team are summarised as follows:

• Financial – operating profit before income tax; and

• Non-financial – strategic goals set by each individual business unit based on job descriptions. 

The Group’s performance measures involve the use of annual performance objectives, metrics, performance appraisals 
and continuing emphasis on living the Company values. 
 
 
 
Short Term Incentive (STI)

Individual performance measures are set annually after consultation with the directors and executives and are specifically 
tailored to the areas where each executive has a level of control. The measures target areas the Board believes hold the 
greatest potential for expansion and profit and cover financial and non-financial measures.  
 
The STI program incorporates both cash and share-based components for the executive team and other employees.  
 
The Board may, at its discretion, award bonuses for exceptional performance in relation to each person’s pre-agreed KPIs.  
 

Group Level Incentive Plan (GLIP)

The GLIP provides a collective bonus for distribution to nominated group level executives leveraged to a minimum 
growth requirement of 10% year-on-year in Net Profit before Tax (NPBT).  Accumulation of the bonus only occurs after 
the achievement of the minimum growth requirement and up to a maximum accumulation of 5% of NPBT.  Merger and 
acquisition activities attract a further hurdle of 10% on funds invested additional to the minimum growth requirement. 
 
The apportionment of the collective bonus to nominated group level executives requires the approval of the Remuneration 
Committee.  Amounts apportioned to executives are to be taken in an equal split of cash and shares unless determined 
otherwise by the Remuneration Committee. 
 
The number of shares issued to executives equates to three times the value of the share apportionment, determined by 
the ASX market price of Legend shares on the date of approval.  Shares issued have a three year vesting period. 
 
In accordance with the Group’s Limited Recourse Loan Agreement, the Company provides to the executive an interest 
bearing loan equal to the value of the shares.  The loan has a maximum term of five years. 
 
Each share has the same voting rights and rights to dividends as existing ordinary shares.  The shares however cannot be 
traded subject to the vesting period or before the repayment of the loan.  Shares are forfeited on the earlier of termination 
of the executive’s employment or the loan expiry date, subject to the loan having not been repaid. 
 
Non-executive Directors are not entitled to participate in the GLIP.

Use of Remuneration Consultants

The Board and Remuneration Committee did not engage remuneration consultants to provide remuneration advice and 
information to the Board during the year. 

Voting and Comments Made at the Company’s 2015 Annual General Meeting

Legend received more than 95.5% of “yes” votes on its remuneration report for the 2016 financial year.  The Company did 
not receive any specific feedback at the AGM on its remuneration report.

Consequences of Performance on Shareholder Wealth

In considering the Group’s performance and benefits for shareholder wealth, the Board has regard to the following indices 
in respect of the current financial year and the previous four financial years:
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Directors and Other Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

b. Details of remuneration

Details of the nature and amount of each element of the remuneration of each key management personnel (‘KMP’) of 
Legend Corporation Limited are shown in the table below.  

1. Underlying NPAT

Underlying Net Profit after Tax attributable to members of $4.8 million (2016: $5.2 million) has been calculated as; NPAT for the year of $3.7 million 
adjusted for the after tax non-cash impact of the impairment of assets of our New Zealand Electrical, Power and Infrastructure division.  Assets 
impaired included; goodwill of $641,000, other intangible assets of $364,000, and plant and equipment of $93,000. 
 
Underlying NPAT is a non-IFRS measure used by the Company which is relevant because it is consistent with measures used internally by 
management and by some in the investment community to assess the operating performance of the business. The non-IFRS measure has not been 
subject to audit or review.

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Net profit before tax $5.8M $7.6M $9.9M $9.7M $9.5M

Net profit after tax $3.7M $5.2M $6.9M $6.7M $6.7M

Underlying net profit after tax  1. $4.8M $5.2M $6.9M $6.7M $6.7M

EPS (cents) 1.7 2.4 3.1 3.1 3.1

Underlying EPS (cents)  1. 2.2 2.4 3.1 3.1 3.1

Dividends paid (cents) 1.2 1.6 1.75 1.85 1.7

Share price at year-end (cents) 17 22.5 26 29 23

Short-Term Benefits
Post- 

employment
benefits

Long-term
Benefits

Termination
Benefits

Salary, fees 
and leave

Profit 
share and 
bonuses

Non-
monetary Superannuation Long Service

Leave
Termination
Payments Total

%  of 
remuneration 

that is 
performance 

based
%

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ %

Executive Director

Mr Bradley Dowe
Managing Director / Chief Executive 
Officer

2017 383,125 - 29,054 35,863 3,934 - 451,976 -

2016 380,000 - 37,800 36,100 14,758 - 468,658 -

Non-Executive Directors

Mr Bruce Higgins
Chairman / Independent Non-executive 
Director

2017 129,194 - - - - - 129,194 -

2016 128,876 - - - - - 128,876 -

Mr Ian Fraser
Independent Non-executive Director

2017 67,028 - - 6,368 - - 73,396 -

2016 66,863 - - 6,352 - - 73,215 -
Other Key Management Personnel

Mr Hamish McEwin
Chief Financial Officer

2017 341,734 - - 19,616 8,246 - 369,596 -

2016 328,192 - - 28,318 12,734 - 369,244 -

Mr Christopher Grawich 
General Manager CABAC

2017 317,870 - - 19,616 4,919 - 342,405 -

2016 317,870 15,000 - 19,308 4,933 - 357,111 4.2

Mr Edward Fyvie 
General Manager
Sales Power (Retired 31 March 2016)

2017 - - - - - - - -

2016 179,850 4,000 - 17,086 - 116,911 317,847 1.3

Total Key Management Personnel
2017 1,238,951 - 29,054 81,463 17,099 - 1,366,567

2016 1,401,651 19,000 37,800 107,164 32,425 116,911 1,714,951
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GLIP Payments

The minimum 10% year-on-year growth in NPBT required under the Plan was not achieved during the current financial 
year therefore no payment will be made under the Plan for the 2017 financial year (2016: $nil).

c. Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Director and other KMP are formalised in a Service 
Agreement. The major provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:

d. Share based remuneration 
 
Employee Share Scheme

Group level executives are encouraged to take a minimum 50% of any bonus payment in Company shares.  No shares 
were issued during the current financial year to Group executives. 
 
GLIP Shares

No shares were issued under the GLIP during the current financial year. 
 
Shares issued to group level executives in prior years which remain subject to vesting periods or repayment of the loan at 
year end are as follows:

Name BASE 
SALARY

ALLOWANCES 
& OTHER 
BENEFITS

SUPERANNUATION TERM OF 
AGREEMENT NOTICE PERIOD

Mr Bradley Dowe $375,000 $22,500 9.5% on base salary Unspecified Six (6) months

Mr Hamish McEwin $330,000 - 9.5% on base salary Unspecified Six (6) months

Mr Chris Grawich $295,370 $22,500 9.5% on base salary up 
to employer cap Unspecified Three (3) months

Name GRANT / 
ISSUE DATE

NUMBER 
GRANTED

VALUE PER 
SHARE ($)

VESTING 
DATE

EXPIRY 
DATE

LOAN BALANCE AT 
YEAR END ($)

Mr Bradley Dowe 15.8.2012 967,742 0.126 15.8.2015 15.8.2017 281,838

Mr Hamish McEwin 15.8.2012 629,032 0.126 15.8.2015 15.8.2017 193,754

The value of shares issued under the GLIP was determined using the Black-Scholes method.  These shares cannot be 
traded subject to the vesting period or before the repayment of the loan. 
 
On 15 of August 2017 loans provided to Dowe and McEwin under the GLIP expired. Neither Dowe nor McEwin exercised 
their right to repay the loan. Consequently all shares granted under the GLIP were cancelled and the loans extinguished. 
 
 
e. Other information

Changes in Directors and Executives Subsequent to Year-End

There have been no changes to Directors or Executives subsequent to year-end.
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Name GRANT / ISSUE 
DATE

NUMBER 
GRANTED

FAIR VALUE AT 
GRANT DATE EXPIRY DATE

Mr Hamish McEwin 7.1.2017 500,000 0.22 7.1.2020

KMP Options and Rights Holdings

All options refer to options over ordinary shares of the Company, which are exercisable on a one-for-one basis.  Options 
carry no dividend or voting rights. 
 
No options over ordinary shares have been held by any KMP of the Group during the financial year or to the date of this 
report. 

Employee Performance Rights Plan

During the year Hamish McEwin was granted the opportunity to receive Performance Rights under an Employee 
Performance Rights Plan. The performance rights offer the right to acquire ordinary shares in Legend Corporation Ltd for 
no consideration. 

The performance rights vest equally in tranches over a 5 year period on the anniversary of the grant date, subject to 
meeting the vesting conditions. 

Vesting conditions include a service condition (the employee must be employed at each anniversary date) and a 
performance condition (achieving a target Net Profit After Tax). Performance rights which do not meet the vesting 
conditions will automatically lapse. 

Performance rights which have met the vesting conditions may be exercised immediately by written notification to the 
Board. The vested performance rights must be exercised by the 5th anniversary of the vesting date. 
 
Details of the performance rights issued are as follows:

30 JUNE 2017 BALANCE AT BEGINNING  
OF YEAR

SHARES PURCHASED OR 
(SOLD) DURING THE YEAR BALANCE AT YEAR END

Mr Bruce Higgins 3,677,150 - 3,677,150

Mr Ian Fraser 840,000 - 840,000 

Mr Bradley Dowe 62,966,896 295,000 63,261,896

Mr Hamish McEwin 1,048,370 (200,000) 848,370

68,532,416 95,000 68,627,416

End of Audited Remuneration Report. 
 
This Report of the Directors, incorporating the Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of the 
Board of Directors.

 
 
 
 
 

Bruce E Higgins 
Chairman of Directors 
Legend Corporation Limited

23 August 2017

Table only includes KMP with shareholding. Table does not reflect change in holdings from the cancellation of shares 
subsequent to year end.

KMP Shareholdings

The number of ordinary shares in Legend Corporation Limited held directly or indirectly by KMP of the Group at the end of 
the financial year is as follows:

No performance rights were issued during the prior year. 



 

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.

Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under 

Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 

To the Directors of Legend Corporation Limited 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Legend Corporation Limited 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 there have been: 

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 
2001 in relation to the audit; and 

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

  

  

  

KPMG Paul Cenko 
Partner 

 Adelaide 

 23 August 2017 
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Statement Of Profit Or Loss And Other Comprehensive Income  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017						     	

Notes Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

Sales revenue  110,697  119,039

Finance income  51  62 

Total revenue  110,748  119,101 

Other income  98  79 

Changes in inventories  (4,217)  1,547 

Raw materials and consumables used  (61,622)  (72,131)

Employee benefits expense  (23,749)  (26,133)

Depreciation and amortisation expense  (2,175)  (2,240)

Finance costs  (849)  (1,051)

Implied interest expense on deferred settlement 2  (350)  (399)   

Occupancy costs  (3,744)  (3,936)

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and plant equipment 10 (1,290) -

Other expenses  (7,016)  (7,285)

Profit before income tax  5,834  7,552 

Income tax expense 3  (2,093)  (2,381)

Profit for the year  3,741  5,171 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (99)    -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  3,642  5,171 

Profit attributable to:

	 Members of the parent entity 3,642 5,171

	 Non-controlling interest - -

 3,642  5,171

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

	 Members of the parent entity 3,642 5,171

	 Non-controlling interest - -

 3,642  5,171

Cents Cents

Basic earnings per share 1.7  2.4 

Diluted earnings per share  1.7 2.4 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements					   
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Notes Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

Restated*

1 July 2015
$000

Restated*
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  7,318 4,980 5,931
Trade and other receivables 7  20,309  20,928 22,187
Inventories 8  27,949 32,608 30,781
Current tax assets - - 312
Prepayments  916  670 940

Total current assets  56,492  59,186 60,151

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 6,130  6,973 7,280
Deferred tax assets 15  1,687  1,789 1,860
Goodwill 10  43,688  44,329 44,905
Other intangible assets 10  6,877  7,993 8,851

Total non-current assets  58,382  61,084 62,896

Total assets  114,874  120,270 123,047

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12  14,245  14,572 15,515
Derivative Financial Instruments 13 147 - -
Borrowings 14  3,700  4,788 4,788
Current tax liabilities 15  369  1,008   -
Short-term provisions 16  4,648  4,749 3,835

Total current liabilities  23,109 25,117 24,138

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12  4,554  5,955 6,126
Borrowings 14  15,436  18,064 22,351
Deferred tax liability 15  2,063  2,396 2,655
Long-term provisions 16  177  225 742

Total non-current liabilities  22,230  26,640 31,874

Total liabilities  45,339 51,757 56,012

Net assets  69,535  68,513 67,035

Equity
Issued capital 17  74,083  74,083 74,281
Reserves 18  11,105  10,083 8,407
Accumulated losses  (15,653)  (15,653) (15,653)

Total equity  69,535  68,513 67,035

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Statement Of Financial Position
AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

* Amounts have been restated to correct for the error detailed in Note 25
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Statement Of Changes In Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017							    
Consolidated Group Notes Issued

Capital
$000

Option
Reserve

$000

Hedge
Reserve

$000

Profits 
Reserve

$000

Accumulated
Losses

$000

Total
$000

Balance at 1 July 2015  74,281  339 -  8,068  (15,653)  67,035 

Profit attributable to members of the parent 
entity - - - - 5,171 5,171

Transfer to profit reserve  -    -   -  5,171  (5,171)  - 

Total comprehensive income for the 
period  -    -   -  5,171  - 5,171   

Shares bought back 17 (198) - - - - (198)

Dividends 6  -    -   -  (3,502)  -    (3,502)

Option expense 18  -    7 -  -    -    7 

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners  (198)  7 -  (3,502)  -    (3,693)

Balance at 30 June 2016  74,083  346 -  9,737  (15,653)  68,513 

Profit attributable to members of the parent 
entity  -    -   -  -    3,741  3,741 

Transfer to profit reserve  -    -   -  3,741  (3,741)  -   

Intrest rate swap changes in fair value (99) - - (99)

Total comprehensive income for the 
period  -    -   (99)  3,741  -    3,642 

Dividends 6  -    -   -  (2,620)  -    (2,620)

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners  -  - -  (2,620)  -    (2,620)

Balance at 30 June 2017  74,083  346 (99)  10,858  (15,653)  69,535 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Statement Of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Notes Consolidated Group
2017
$000

2016
$000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers  120,306 128,583 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (106,008) (117,124)

Interest received  51  45 

Finance costs  (850)  (1,051)

Income tax paid  (2,964)  (1,245)

Net cash provided by operating activities 21  10,535  9,208 

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 16    - 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (863)  (1,183)

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash 2  (1,000)  (1,000)

Proceeds from employee loans  -  17 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,847)  (2,166)

Cash flows from financing activities
Share buy back  - (198)   

Dividends paid  (2,620)  (3,502)

Repayment of borrowings  (4,516)  (4,788)

Proceeds from bank loans  800  500 

Net cash used in financing activities  (6,336)  (7,988) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents held  2,352  (946)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year  4,980  5,931 

Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents  (14)  (5)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year  7,318  4,980 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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Notes To The Financial Statements			
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017		 					   
This financial report covers Legend Corporation Limited (‘Parent Entity’ or ‘Company”) and its controlled entities as a consolidated entity 
(‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’).  Legend Corporation Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.  The 
address of its registered office is 1 Butler Drive, Hendon, South Australia, 5014.

NOTE 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
(a) General information and statement of compliance
These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other requirements of the law. 

These financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Group. For the purposes of preparing the consolidated 
financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.  The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in 
respect of the previous period.  An additional statement of financial position as at 1 July 2015 is presented in these financial statements 
due to the correction of an error retrospectively. See note 25.

Accounting Standards include Australian Accounting Standards. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the 
financial statements and notes of the Company and the Group comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of 
Directors on 23 August 2017. 
 
 
(b) Application of new and revised Accounting Standards
A number of new and revised standards became effective for the first time to annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2017.  
The Directors have determined that each of these has an immaterial effect on the consolidated financial statements.  
 
 
(c) Accounting standards issued by not yet effective and not adopted early by the Group:
A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July 2017, and have not 
been applied in preparing these consolidated financials statements. Those which may be relevant to the Group are set out below. The 
Group does not plan to adopt these standards early, and continues to assess the impact on the entity. 

New or amended 
standard

Summary of requirements Possible impact on consolidated 
financial statements

AASB 9 Financial 
Instruments

AASB 9, published in July 2014, replaces the 
existing guidance in AASB 139 Financial instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. AASB 9 includes 
revised guidance on the classification and measurement 
of financial instruments, including a new expected 
credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial 
assets, and the new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on 
recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments 
from AASB 139. 

AASB 9 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. 

The Group is assessing the potential impact 
on its consolidated financial statements 
resulting from application of AASB 9.

AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers

AASB 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much, and when revenue 
is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 
Construction contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty 
Programmes. 

AASB 15 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early 
adoption permitted. 

The Group is assessing the potential impact 
on its consolidated financial statements 
resulting from application of AASB 15.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

AASB 16 Leases AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model 
and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities 
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, 
unless the underlying asset is of low value. AASB 16 
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting 
requirements in AASB 117 Leases. 

AASB 16 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 

The Group is assessing the potential impact 
on its consolidated financial statements 
resulting from application of AASB 16.

 
 
 
(d) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Parent Entity and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 30 June 2017.  
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements 
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which 
control ceases. All subsidiaries have a reporting date of 30 June.

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation including unrealised gains and losses on 
transactions between Group companies. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where 
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

 
 
(e) Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the Group to 
obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and 
the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration 
arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have 
been previously recognised in the acquirer’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are 
generally measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the sum of a) fair value of 
consideration transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of 
any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable 
net assets exceed the sum calculated above, the excess amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit or loss 
immediately. 
 
 
(f) Income tax
Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity.	

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) and other 
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is calculated based 
on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred income taxes are calculated without discounting, based on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities and their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill or on the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability unless the related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax on temporary 
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can 
be controlled by the Group and it is probable that reversal will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective period 
of realisation, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax liabilities are always 
provided for in full. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to be utilised against future taxable income.  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Group has a right and intention to set off current tax assets and liabilities 
from the same taxation authority. 
 
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except where 
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income (such as the revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which 
case the related deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively. 
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(g) Inventories
The Group periodically assess the carrying value of inventory to ensure it is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
includes all expenses directly attributable to the manufacturing process as well as suitable portions of related production overheads, 
based on normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average costs. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expense adjusted for provisions applied based on 
management expectations of inventories which are slow moving or excess.  
 
(h) Property plant and equipment 

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised within depreciation expense on a straight-line basis to write down the cost or valuation less estimated 
residual value of property, plant and equipment.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset		  Depreciation Rate
Leasehold improvements		  2.5 - 30%

Motor Vehicles			   18-25%

Plant and Equipment		  10 - 40% 
 
Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually. 
 
Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in profit or loss within ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’. 
 
(i) Leases
Payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, 
such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred. 
 
(j) Financial instruments
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities. 

The Group applies IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, which establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making 
disclosures about fair value measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other IFRSs. It unifies the definition 
of fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. It replaces and expands the disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in other 
IFRSs. As a result, the Group has applied additional disclosures in this regard within Notes 7 and 23. 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Finance Director has overall 
responsibility for all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. 

The Finance Director regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to 
measure fair values, the Finance Director assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such 
valuations meet the requirements of AASB, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. 

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Audit Committee. 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are 
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

• Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 

• Level 3: inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If inputs used to measure fair value of an asset or liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair 
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value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant 
to the entire measurement. 

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change 
has occurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial 
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial 
asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for financial assets 
and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured initially at fair value. Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are measured subsequently as described below.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are 
classified into the following categories upon initial recognition: 
 
• Loans and receivables 
 
The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and expense is recognised in profit or loss or in 
other comprehensive income. 
 
All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting 
date. Financial assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. 
Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below. 
 
All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within ‘finance costs’, ‘finance 
income’ or ‘other financial items’, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within ‘other expenses’ 
 
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 
After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. 
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other 
receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. 
 
Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received 
that a specific counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in 
groups, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The 
impairment loss estimate is then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group. 
 
Financial Liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments. 
 
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held 
for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in 
profit or loss. 
 
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially 
measured at fair value, any directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial 
recognition derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges
When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative 
is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair 
value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
 
The amount accumulated in equity is retained in Other Comprehensive Income and reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or 
periods during which the hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss or the hedged items affect profit or loss. 
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If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedging 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If 
the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. 
All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are accounted for at fair value through 
profit or loss. 
 
All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are included within 
‘finance costs’ or ‘finance income’. 
 
(k) Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash 
inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating 
unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business 
combination and represent the lowest level within the Group at which management monitors goodwill. Cash-generating units to which 
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment at least annually. All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds it’s 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management 
estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the 
present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved 
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are 
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect their respective risk profiles as assessed by management. 
 
Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any 
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets 
are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge 
is reversed if the cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount. 
 
(l) Intangibles

Goodwill
Goodwill represents future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually identified and separately 
recognised. Refer to note 1(b) for information on how goodwill is initially determined.  Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses. Refer to note 1(h) for impairment testing procedures. 
 
Acquired Intangible Assets
Customer  list, Brand names,  Non-compete and intellectual property intangible assets recognised in a business combination that 
qualify for separate recognition are recognised as intangible assets at their fair values. These intangible assets are amortised over their 
lives based on future cash flow forecasts. The following useful lives are applied:

• Customer list: 5-10 years

• Non compete agreement: 5 years

• Intellectual property: 15 years

• Brand names: indefinite useful life

Residual values and useful lives of other intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition they are subject to 
impairment testing as described in note 1 (j).

Amortisation has been included within Depreciation and amortisation expense. 
 
(m) Foreign currency transactions and balances
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars (AUD), which is also the functional currency of the Parent 
Entity.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using the exchange rates 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of 
such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction (not 
retranslated). Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was 
determined.

In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional currency other than the AUD 
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(the Group’s presentation currency) are translated into AUD upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities in the Group 
have remained unchanged during the reporting period.

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into AUD at the closing rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses 
have been translated into the Group’s presentation currency at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are 
charged/credited to other comprehensive income and recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal of a foreign 
operation the cumulative translation differences recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or loss and recognised as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into AUD at the closing rate. 
 
(n) Employee benefits
Provision is made for the Group’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. 
Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liability is settled. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of estimated future cash 
outflows to be made for those benefits. Those cash outflows are discounted using market yields on high quality corporate bonds with 
terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows. 
 
(o) Share based employee remuneration
The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment employee share and option schemes.  The fair value of the equity to which 
employees become entitled is measured at grant date and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding 
increase to an equity account.  The fair value of shares is ascertained as the market bid price.  The fair value of options is ascertained 
using a Black–Scholes pricing model which incorporates all market vesting conditions. 
 
(p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
 
(q) Revenue and other income

Sale of Goods
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and 
volume rebates allowed.  Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that 
is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements.  The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount 
ultimately received is interest revenue. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and rewards 
of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods. 
 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
 
(r) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of 
an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 
 
Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing 
activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 
 
(s) Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the fair value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are 
deducted from share capital net of any related income tax benefits. 
 
Retained earnings includes all current and prior period retained profits. Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are 
included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date. 
 
(t) Rounding of amounts
The Group is of a kind referred to in ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial /Directors Reports) Instrument 2016/191 and in 
accordance with that instrument, amounts in the consolidated financial statements and directors’ report have been rounded off to the 
nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.  
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NOTE 2:  Acquisitions

Contingent Consideration							     
On 31 August 2016 an amount of $1,000,000 (2016: $1,000,000) was paid in relation to the acquisition of selected business assets of 
System Control Engineering Pty Ltd and the shares of System Control Engineering NZ (the SCE Group) Limited as part of the deferred 
payment arrangements arising from the transaction which occurred on 1 May 2015.  
 
The SCE Group achieved the Earnings before Interest and Taxation (EBIT) target for the year ended 30 June 2017 and a further 
deferred payment of $1,750,000 is due 31 August 2017. 
 
Further deferred payments, up to a maximum of $4,969,759 are payable:

- no later than 31 August 2018: $2,150,000 

- no later than 31 August 2019: $2,819,759 
 
The payments are contingent on the achievement of EBIT targets each year. EBIT targets are combined for both System Control 
Engineering Pty Ltd and System Control Engineering NZ Limited. The current EBIT forecasts indicate that the SCE Group will achieve 
all targets and the full value of the remaining deferred consideration has been included. The fair value has been calculated using a 
discount rate of 5.9%.  
 
During the year an implied interest expense of $350,000 (2016: $399,000) has been recognised to reflect the change in the net present 
value of the contingent consideration. 

(u) Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Key estimates- Impairment 

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of 
assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in 
assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key estimates.

Key estimates- Business combinations

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair value of the various elements of a business combination. Particularly the 
fair value of contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many variables that affect future profitability.

Key estimates- Inventory valuation

Management periodically assesses the carrying value of inventory to ensure it is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Slow moving and excess items are provisioned based on management expectations of the percentage of cost expected to be recovered 
when the items are sold. 

Key estimates- Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual value and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment 
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets.  
Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values may differ from those previously estimated. 
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore depreciation expenses in future periods.

The directors believe there are no other key estimates or judgements.
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NOTE 3:  Income Tax Expense Consolidated Group

Notes 2017
$000

2016
$000

a. The components of tax expense comprise:
Current tax  2,325  2,562 

Deferred tax 15  (232)  (181) 

 2,093 2,381 

b. The prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities before income 
tax is reconciled to the income tax as follows:
Prima facie tax payable on profit before income tax at 30% (2016: 30%)  1,750  2,266 

   -Consolidated group

Add:
Tax effect of: 

   - Impairment of goodwill 192 -

   - Implied interest on deferred consideration  105  120 

   - Prior year under provision for income tax  41  -   

   - Other non-allowable items 5 (5)

 343  115 

Income tax attributable to entity  2,093  2,381 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows: 36% 32%

Consolidated Group	
2017 

$
2016 

$

Short-term employee benefits  1,268,005  1,458,451 

Post-employment benefits  81,461  107,163 

Other long-term benefits 17,099 36,150

Termination benefits  -  116,911   

 1,366,565  1,718,675 

NOTE 4:  Interests Of Key Management Personnel (KMP)
 
The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the company and the Group during the year are as follows:
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NOTE 5:  Auditors’ Remuneration Consolidated Group

2017
$

2016
$

Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entity for:

KPMG

- Auditing the financial report  199,875 -

- Taxation services  21,467  - 

Grant Thorton

- Auditing the financial report - 261,000

NOTE 6:  Dividends Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Dividends declared during the year:

Fully franked final dividend payment (1.0 cents per share)  -  2,192 

Fully franked final dividend payment (0.6 cents per share)   1,310  - 

Fully franked interim dividend  (0.6 cents per share)  1,310 1,310   

 2,620  3,502 

The tax rates applicable to the franking credits attached to the interim and final dividend is 30%.

a. Franking credits
The amount of franking credits available for subsequent reporting periods are:

Balance at the end of the reporting period  22,423  19,879 

 - Franking credits that will arise from payment of income tax  313  863   

 22,736  20,742 
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NOTE 7:  Trade and other Receivables Consolidated Group

Notes 2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Trade receivables  20,427  21,030 

Provision for impairment of receivables 7a  (118)  (102)

 20,309  20,928 

Other receivables  302  302 

Provision for impairment of other receivables 7a  (302)  (302)

 -    -   

Total trade and other receivables  20,309  20,928 

All amounts are short term. The net carrying amount of receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.  

a. Provision for impairment of receivables

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. The impaired trade and other 
receivables are due from customers experiencing financial difficulties.							     
		

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is reconciled as follows:

Balance 1 July  404  858 

Amounts written off (uncollectable)  (84)  (302)

Impairment loss recognised/(reversed)  100  (152) 

Balance at 30 June  420  404 
 
An analysis of unimpaired trade receivables that are past due is given in Note 23		
							     

NOTE 8:  Inventories Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

Restated*
Inventories consist of the following:

At cost

Raw material and stores  2,016  2,686 

Work in progress  56  76 

Finished goods 20,179  23,754 

22,251 26,516

At net realisable value

Finished goods 5,698  6,092 

27,949 32,608
Inventories written off during the year	  319  134

No reversals of previous write downs were recognised as a reduction of expense in 2017 or 2016. None of the inventories are pledged 
as security for liabilities.

* Amounts have been restated to correct the error detailed in Note 25
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NOTE 9:  Property, Plant & Equipment
Plant and 

Equipment 
$000

Motor  
Vehicles 

$000

Leasehold 
Improvements 

$000

Total
$000

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2016  28,704  357  1,631  30,692 

Additions  806  -  60  866 

Disposals  (11)  (21)    -    (32)

Balance at 30 June 2017  29,499  336  1,691  31,526 

Depreciation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2016  (22,574)  (78)  (1,067)  (23,719)

Disposals  7  5    -   12

Impairment loss recognised* (130) - - (130)

Depreciation expense  (1,322)  (94)  (143)  (1,559)

Balance at 30 June 2017  (24,019)  (167)  (1,210)  (25,396)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2017  5,480  169  481  6,130 

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2015  27,692  412  1,539  29,643 

Acquired through business combination 
(adjusted)  -  (114)  -    (114) 

Additions  1,047  59  92  1,198 

Disposals  (35)  -  -    (35)

Balance at 30 June 2016  28,704  357  1,631  30,692 

Depreciation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2015  (21,401)  (22)  (940)  (22,363)

Disposals  14  -  -    14 

Depreciation expense  (1,187)  (56)  (127)  (1,370)

Balance at 30 June 2016  (22,574)  (78)  (1,067)  (23,719)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2016  6,130  279  564  6,973 

* An impairment loss of $130,000 was recognised during the year. Refer note 10a for further information. All depreciation and 
impairment charges (or reversals if any) are included within “depreciation and amortisation expense”.
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NOTE 10:  Intangible Assets Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

a. Goodwill
Gross carrying amount
Balance 1 July  61,637  62,213 

Acquired through asset acquisition  -  (576) 

Balance at 30 June  61,637  61,637 

Accumulated impairment
Balance 1 July  (17,308)  (17,308)

Impairment loss recognised  (641)  -   

Balance 30 June  (17,949)  (17,308)

Carrying amount at 30 June  43,688  44,329 
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NOTE 10:  Intangible Assets (cont) Consolidated Group

Impairment Disclosure
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units which are based on the Group’s reporting segments.

2017
$000

2016
$000

Innovative Electrical Solutions
Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd  12,047  12,047 

Electrical Power and Infrastructure
Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd  28,073  28,073 

Ecco Pacific Limited  -  641 

Gas and Plumbing
System Control Engineering Pty Ltd  3,553 3,553 

System Control Engineering NZ Limited  15  15 

 43,688  44,329 

Impairment testing for cash generating units containing goodwill 
The Group’s CGU’s were tested for impairment at 30 June 2017.  The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units above is determined 
based on value-in-use calculations.  Value-in-use is calculated based on the present value of cash flow projections over a 5-year period, plus a 
terminal value.  The cash flows are discounted using weighted average cost of capital of the cash generating units. 
 
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent Management’s assessment of future trends in the industry and are based on historical 
data from both external sources and internal sources.

The following assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations:

Terminal 
Growth Rate

Forecast 5 year annual 
Growth Rate

Discount Rate

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Innovative Electrical Solutions
Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd 0% 0% 4.12% 1.46% 15.2% 14.8%

Electrical Power and Infrastructure
Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd 0% 0% 7.02% 3.3% 15.2% 14.8%

Ecco Pacific Limited 0% 0% 0% 2.0% 15.7% 15.3%

Gas and Plumbing
System Control Engineering Pty Ltd 0% 0% 6.2% 10.0% 15.2% 14.8%

System Control Engineering NZ Limited 0% 0% 2.0% 24.0% 15.7% 15.3%

Management has based the value-in-use calculation on budgets for each reporting segment.  These budgets use historical weighted average growth 
rates adjusted for current market conditions to project revenue.  The projection period reflects the expected useful life of the assets and product 
lifecycle.  Costs are calculated taking into account historical gross margins as well as estimated weighted average inflation rates over the period, 
which are consistent with inflation rates applicable to the locations in which the segments operate.  Discount rates are pre-tax and are adjusted 
to incorporate risks associated with the segment. The terminal growth rate was determined based on management’s estimate of the long term 
compounded annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions a market participant would make.
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NOTE 10:  Intangible Assets (cont)

Impairment loss in relation to Ecco Pacific Limited

Following a loss in Ecco Pacific Limited in the six months ended 31 December 2016  the Group assessed the recoverable amount of 
the cash generating unit (CGU). 

The carrying amount of Ecco Pacific Limited was determined to be higher than its recoverable amount of $nil and an impairment 
loss of $1,290,000 (2016; $nil) was recognised.  The impairment loss was allocated against goodwill ($641,000), intangible 
assets ($500,000) and plant and equipment ($130,000) and is included in “impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and plant and 
equipment” in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.  
 
Following the impairment loss the Ecco Pacific Limited, the recoverable amount is equal to the carrying amount. 

b. Other intangible assets
Details of the Group’s other intangible assets and their carrying amounts are as follows:

Brand Name

$000

Customer 
Relationships

$000

Non 
Compete 

Agreement 
$000

Intellectual 
Property 

$000

Total

$000

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2016  5,800  3,385  1,239  419  10,843 
Balance at 30 June 2017  5,800  3,385  1,239  419  10,843 
Amortisation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2016  -    (1,835)  (878)  (137)  (2,850)
Amortisation  -    (391)  (197)  (28)  (616)
Impairment loss (refer to note 10a.) (500) - - - (500)
Balance at 30 June 2017  (500)  (2,226)  (1,075)  (165)  (3,966)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2017  5,300  1,159  164  254  6,877 

Gross carrying amount
Balance at 1 July 2015  5,800  3,385  1,239  419  10,843 
Balance at 30 June 2016  5,800  3,385  1,239  419  10,843 
Amortisation and impairment
Balance 1 July 2015  -    (1,319)  (564)  (109)  (1,992)
Amortisation  -    (516)  (314)  (28)  (858)
Balance at 30 June 2016  -    (1,835)  (878)  (137)  (2,850)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2016  5,800  1,550  361  282  7,993 
 
All amortisation and impairment charges (or reversals if any) are included within depreciation and amortisation.

Brand Name
Brand names have an indefinite useful life. These brand names are tested annually for impairment.  An impairment loss of $500,000 
was recognised during the year. Refer note 10a. for further discussion. 

Customer relationships
The customer relationships have been valued by calculating the net present value of the cash flows expected from the customers 
over the customers useful lives. The useful lives range from 3 to 20 years. 

Non Compete Agreement
The non compete agreements in place have a maximum  5 year restraint period from the date of acquisition. The value was 
determined using managements best estimate of the relationships with customers and vendors and their ability to transfer to 
alternative organisations.  
			 
Intellectual Property
Specific knowledge and know-how had been developed in-house for the key products selling at acquisition date. The costs 
accumulated to the date of acquisition have been capitalised and have an expected life cycle of these products of 15 years. 
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NOTE 11:  Controlled Entities

a. Controlled entities consolidated
Consolidated Group

Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage Owned (%)*

2017 2016

Subsidiaries of Legend Corporation Limited

Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

IES Investments Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

System Control Engineering Pty Ltd Australia 100 100

Ecco Pacific Limited New Zealand  100  100 

System Control Engineering NZ Limited New Zealand  100 100   

Subsidiaries of Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd
Legend Pacific Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

Subsidiaries of Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd
Cable Accessories (Australia) Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

Cable Projects Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

Subsidiaries of IES Investments Pty Ltd
Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

Subsidiaries of MSS Fibre Pty Ltd
Circle Power Electrical Data Pty Ltd Australia  100  100 

* Percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership

b. Deed of Cross Guarantee
Legend Corporation Limited, Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd, Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Holdings) 
Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Aust) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, IES Investments Pty Ltd, Hendon Semiconductors Pty 
Ltd, System Control Engineering Pty Ltd, MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, Circle Power Electrical Data Pty Ltd, Ecco Pacific 
Limited and System Control Engineering NZ Limited are parties to a deed of cross guarantee under which each company 
guarantees the debts of the other.  By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities have been relieved from the 
requirement to prepare a financial report and director’s report under ASIC Corporations (Wholly owned companies) 
Instrument 2016/785.

The consolidated financial report covers the closed group and all parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee.
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NOTE 12:  Trade and other Payables Notes Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

Restated*
Current
Trade payables 8,219 9,267

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 6,026 5,305

23 14,245 14,572
Non-current
Sundry payables and accrued expenses  4,554  5,955 

23  4,554  5,955 

NOTE 14:  Borrowings

Current
Secured liabilities
Bank bills 14a 3,700  4,788 

 3,700  4,788 

Non-current
Secured liabilities  15,436  18,064 

Bank bills 14a  15,436  18,064 

Total current and non-current secured liabilities
Bank bills 17  19,136 22,852 

19,136 22,852 

a. Bank bills

Bank bills have been provided by Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited.  The Letter of Offer under which these facilities 
were offered was signed on 1 May 2017. 
 
Bank bills, which have been drawn as a source of long-term finance, are provided by the Bank under multiple facilities with a 
termination date of 30 April 2019.  The bills mature on the last business day of every month. As at 30 June 2017 $11,000,000 of the 
bank bills have a fixed interest rate of 3.99% under an interest rate swap agreement. The current blended interest rate is 3.67% 
(2016: 3.795%) payable on each interest payment date.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to mitigate exchange rate exposure arising from forecast purchases in US dollars. All 
derivatives are measured at fair value. The forward contracts have not been formally designated as hedging arrangements.

On 8 May 2017 the Group entered an interest rate swap agreement which the Group has designated as a hedge against the variability 
in future interest rate payments due on $11,000,000. The terms of the agreement effectively convert the variable interest rate payments 
due to a fixed rate of 3.99%. 							     

* Amounts have been restated to correct for the error detailed in Note 25

NOTE 13:  Other Financial Liabilities

Derivative Financial Instruments
US Dollar forward contracts  48 -

Interest rate swap contract  99 -

 147 -
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NOTE 14:  Borrowings (cont)

Bank bills are secured by:

i. Fixed and floating charges over the whole of the company assets including goodwill and uncalled capital and 
called but unpaid capital together with relative insurance policy assigned to the Australia and New Zealand 
Banking Group Limited given by System Control Engineering Pty Ltd, MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, Circle Power 
Electrical Data Pty Ltd, Legend Corporation Limited, Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd, Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, 
Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Australia) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, Hendon 
Semiconductors Pty Ltd, IES Investments Pty Ltd, Ecco Pacific Limited and System Control Engineering NZ 
Limited.								     

The following covenants apply to debt facilities provided by the Bank:

i. Debt to EBITDA Ratio
The Debt to EBITDA Ratio for any relevant period does not exceed 3.00

ii. Interest Cover Ratio
The Interest Cover Ratio for any relevant period is not less than 3.00:1.

iii. Minimum Net Assets
The Net Assets of the Testing Entities is not at any time less than the amount which is 90% of the Net Assets of 
the Testing Entities as shown in the annual audited Financial Statements for the previous financial year.	

During the year and to the date of this report, the company has complied with all banking covenants.
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NOTE 15:  Tax Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

a. Current
Income tax payable 369 1,008

b. Non-Current
Deferred tax assets comprise:

Provisions 1,670 1,772

Other 17 17

1,687 1,789
Deferred tax liabilities comprise:

Intangible assets 2,063 2,396

2,063 2,396
c. Reconciliations

i. Deferred tax liabilities
The movement in deferred tax liability account is as follows:

Intangible assets

Opening balance 2,397 2,654

Charge/(credit) to income statements  (334)  (258)

Closing balance  2,063 2,396

ii. Deferred tax assets
The movement in deferred tax assets account is as follows:

Provisions

Opening balance  1,772  1,843 

(Charge)/credit to profit or loss  (102)  (71)

Closing balance  1,670  1,772 
Other

Opening balance  17  17 

Closing balance  17  17 
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NOTE 16:  Provisions
Employee 
Benefits

$000

 
Total
$000

Consolidated group
Opening balance 1 July 2016  4,974  4,974 

Additional provisions  1,327  1,327 

Amounts used  (1,476)  (1,476)

Balance at 30 June 2017  4,825  4,825 

Consolidated Group
2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Analysis of total provisions
Current  4,648  4,749 

Non-current 177  225 

 4,825  4,974 

Provision for employee benefits
A provision has been recognised for employee benefits relating to annual leave and long service leave.  In calculating the present 
value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data.  
The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in Note 1n to this report.

NOTE 17:  Issued Capital
                                                                                                          Notes Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

218,320,467 (2016: 218,320,467) fully paid ordinary shares  74,083  74,083 
The share capital of Legend Corporation Limited consists only of fully paid ordinary shares, the shares do not have a par value. All 
shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital, and represent one vote at the shareholders meeting of 
Legend Corporation Limited.		

a. Ordinary shares No. No.
At beginning of reporting period 218,320,467 219,200,251

Shares bought back 17b - (879,784)

Total shares authorised 30 June  218,320,467  218,320,467 

b. Share buy back	 									       

On 24 December 2015 Legend commenced a share buy back as part of its capital management strategy. In accodance with ASX rules 
the price paid for the shares under the buy back is no more than 5% above the volume weighted average price over the 5 trading days 
prior to purchase.														            
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NOTE 17:  Issued Capital (cont)

c. Capital management
Management controls the capital of the Group by taking into consideration a range of factors including current and 
future expected cost of borrowing and share price in order to provide the shareholders with adequate returns and 
ensure that the Group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.

The Group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjusting its capital 
structure in response to changes in these risks and in the market.  These responses include the management of debt 
levels, distributions to shareholders and share issues.

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group since the prior 
year.  The gearing ratio’s for the year ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2016 are as follows:

Notes Consolidated Group
2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Restated*

Borrowings 14 19,136  22,852 

Less cash and cash equivalents  (7,318)  (4,980)

Net debt  11,818  17,872 

Trade and other payables 12 18,799  20,527 

Net debt including trade and other payables 30,617  38,399

Total equity  69,535  68,513 

Total capital 100,152  106,912 

Gearing Ratio 31% 36%

NOTE 18:  Reserves
Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

a. Option reserve

The option reserve records items recognised as expenses on valuation of employee share options and shares issued under the 
Group Level Incentive Plan. 									      

Movements in the Options reserve were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year  346 339 

Option expense  -  7 

Balance at the end of the year  346  346 

b. Hedge reserve

The hedge reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in fair value of the hedging instruments.

Balance at the beginning of the year  - -

Interest rate swap - changes in fair value (99)  - 

Balance at the end of the year (99) -

Notes To The Financial Statements			
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017		 					   

* Amounts have been restated to correct for the error detailed in Note 25



53

Notes To The Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTE 19:  Leases Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements

Payable - minimum lease payments

 - not later than 12 months  3,118 3,315 

 - between 12 months and 5 years  11,062  11,913 

 - greater than 5 years  2,041 4,202   

 16,221 19,430 

The most significant property lease at Seven Hills NSW which commenced on 30 May 2008 and is a non-cancellable 
lease with a 10-year term.  Rent is payable monthly in advance.  Rent adjustments are performed annually on the 
basis of a Market Review.  As it is not possible to determine future market rates, minimum lease repayments have been 
calculated on the basis of current rental payments over the remaining period of the lease.  This lease was extended on 
29 April 2015 with an additional 5 year term. 
 
An additional property lease commenced 1 July 2016 for a new premises in Mitcham Vic. This is a non cancellable lease 
with a 5 year term and fixed annual rental increases of 2.5% per year. Rent is payable monthly in advance.  An option 
exists to renew the lease for an additional 5 years at the end of the 5 year term. 

NOTE 18:  Reserves (cont) Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

c. Profits reserve
The profits reserve records profits which are available for distribution to shareholders.

Movements in the Profits reserve were as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 9,737  8,068 

Net profit for the year 3,741  5,171 

Dividends paid  (2,620)  (3,502)

Balance at the end of the year 10,858  9,737 
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NOTE 20:  Operating Segments

Segment Information

Identification of reportable segments 
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors 
(chief operating decision makers) in assessing the performance and determining the allocation of resources.			 

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category since the diversification of the Group’s operations inherently have 
notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria.  Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis.

Reportable segments disclosure are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are considered to have similar 
economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following;					      
•	 the products sold by the segment; 
• 	 the manufacturing process; and 
• 	 the type or class of customer for the products.										        
 
Types of products by segment											            
Electrical, Power and Infrastructure 
The electrical, power and infrastructure segment distributes a wide range of house branded electrical and connectivity products and 
tools, cable assemblies, data and computer room products.  Products are of a similar nature with the majority of customers being within 
the electrical wholesale or power and infrastructure industries. 									       
 
Innovative Electrical Solutions 	 										        
The innovative electrical solutions segment manufactures application designs and integrated circuits, thick film hybrids, and ceramic 
printed circuit boards for use across industries including medical, telecommunications, lighting, automotive and consumer electrical. 
Manufacture of these products is performed in accordance with customer specifications, requiring a high level of technical expertise.		
	  
Gas and Plumbing										          
This segment supplies products and parts for industrial and commercial gas, heating, refrigeration and air conditioning components, 
appliance spares and related value added systems in Australia and New Zealand.							     
				     
Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments							        
Accounting policies adopted											           
Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors (as the chief decision makers)  with respect to operating 
segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the annual financial statements 
of the Group. 
 
Inter-segment transaction 
An internally determined transfer price is set for all inter-entity sales.  This price is reviewed six-monthly and reset as required, and is 
based on what would be realised in the event that the sale was made to an external party at arm’s-length.  All such transactions are 
eliminated on consolidation for the Group financial statements. 
 
Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall proportion of revenue generation within the 
Group.  The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head office expenditure that should be used in 
assessing segment performance and cost recoveries.									       

Segment assets 
Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives the majority of economic value 
from the asset.  In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their nature and location. 
	  
Segment liabilities	  
Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the operations of the 
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segment.  Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated.

Note 20: Segment Information (cont)
 													           
Unallocated items	 												             
The following items of revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part 
of the core operations of any segment;											         
•  finance income and costs;	 
•  income tax expense; 
•  deferred tax assets and liabilities; 												          
 
 
There have been no changes from the prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss.

(i) Segment performance
Electrical, 
Power and 

Infrastructure

Innovative 
Electrical 
Solutions

Gas and 
Plumbing 

Consolidated 
Group

2017

$000

2016

$000

2017

$000

2016

$000

2017
$000

2016

$000

2017

$000

2016

$000

Revenue
Revenue from external customers  74,120  79,740  6,450  9,728  30,127  29,576 110,697 119,044 
Inter-segment revenues  -    -    1,970  2,558  -    -    -    -   
Total revenue  74,120  79,740  8,420  12,286  30,127  29,576 110,697 119,044 

Result
Earnings before interest, taxation, 
depreciation and amortisation  4,735  4,829  1,929  4,203  3,784  2,148 

Depreciation and amortisation  (1,127)  (1,188)  (203)  (202)  (846)  (850)
Impairment loss on goodwill, intangible 
assets and property plant and 
equipment

(1,290)  - - - - -

Segment operating profit 2,318  3,641  1,726  4,001  2,938  1,298 6,982  8,940 
Finance income  51  62 
Finance costs  (849)  (1,051)
Implied interest on deferred 
consideration  (350)  (399)   

Profit before income tax  5,834  7,552 
Income tax expense  (2,093)  (2,381)
Profit after income tax  3,741  5,171 
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(ii) Segment assets and liabilities
Electrical, Power 

and Infrastructure
Innovative 

Electrical Solutions
Gas and Plumbing Consolidated 

Group

2017

$000

2016

$000

Restated*

2017

$000

2016

$000

Restated*

2017
$000

2016

$000

Restated*

2017

$000

2016

$000

Restated*
Assets
Segment assets 70,217 76,184 17,125 17,882 25,845 24,415 113,187 118,481
Deferred Tax assets  1,687  1,789 

Total assets 114,874 120,270

Liabilities
Segment liabilities 18,928 21,320  1,143  1,373  3,553  2,808 23,624 25,501
Tax liabilities  2,432  3,404 
Financial liabilities 147 -
Borrowings 19,136 22,852  
Total liabilities 45,339 51,757

Top 3 customers Segment 2017 2016
1 Electrical 19% 17%
2 Electrical 7% 6%
3 Electrical 4% 3%

(iii) Revenue and assets by geographical region
The Groups revenue from external customers are divided into the following geographical areas:

Consolidated Group
2017
$000

2016
$000

Australia 103,308  111,598 
New Zealand 7,389  7,441 

110,697  119,039

NOTE 20:  Operating Segments (cont)

(iv) Major Customers

 The Group’s most significant customers by percentage of group revenue and the segment to which they belong are as follows:
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57

Notes To The Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

NOTE 21:  Cash Flow Information Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

a. Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Profit after Income Tax
Profit after income tax 3,741  5,171 

Non-cash flows in profit
 - Depreciation and amortisation  2,175  2,241 

 - Impairment loss on goodwill, intangible assets and property plant and equipment 1,290 -

 - Net loss on disposal of property plant and equipment  4  11

 - Implied interest on deferred settlement  350 399   

 - Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign denominated balances  28  (224) 

 - Employee option expense  -  8 

Change in assets and liabilities, net of the effect of purchase and disposal of 
subsidiaries
 - (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 611  1,022

 - (Increase)/decrease in current assets - restated* (246)  236 

 - (Increase)/decrease in inventories - restated* 4,635  (1,249)

 - (Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets 103  70 

 - Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals - restated* (1,034)  59 

 - Increase/(decrease) in provisions  (149)  397

 - Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable (640)  1,321

 - Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities  (333)  (254)

Cash flow from operations  10,535  9,208 

*Amounts have been restated to correct the error detailed in Note 25

b. Credit Standby Arrangements and Loan Facilities with Banks	
Credit facilities  27,521  30,211 

Amounts utilised  (19,203)  (25,862)

 8,318  4,349 

The Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited provided facilities are summarised as follows:
i. Interchangeable Facility (1)  with a limit of $22,121,000 including fixed rate loan facility, floating rate loan facility 

and daily rate loan facility

ii. Interchangeable Facility (2)  with a limit of $3,600,000 including overdraft facility, standby letter of credit or 
guarantee facility, documentary credit issuance / documents surrendered facility and trade finance loan facility.

iii. Electronic Payway Facility with a limit of $1,200,000

iv. Commercial Card Facility with a limit of $350,000

v. Asset Finance Facility with a limit of $250,000

The Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited will continue to provided finance so long as the Parent Entity 
and Consolidated Group do not breach borrowing requirements or financial ratios as detailed in Note 14.

The ANZ Bank New Zealand Limited provided facilities with a total limit of $100,000.
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Number of shares 
granted

Fair value at issue date  
(per share) 

$

Fair value at issue date  
(aggregate) 

$000

15 August 2012 - issued  1,896,774  0.31    588  

5 September  2014 - forfeited  (300,000)

Total issued  1,596,774 

NOTE 22:  Share-Based Payments

Group Level Incentive Plan
The company has established a Group Level Incentive Plan (GLIP) which provides a collective bonus for distribution to nominated 
group level executives leveraged to a minimum growth requirement of 10% year on year in Net Profit Before Tax (NPBT). 
 
Accumulation of the bonus occurs after the achievement of the minimum growth requirement, up to a maximum accumulation of 5% of 
NPBT

Merger and acquisition activities attract a further hurdle of 10% on funds invested additional to the minimum growth requirement. 
 
The minumum NPBT growth requirement for the 2016 financial year was not achieved and no shares were issued under GLIP during 
the current financial year. 

Notes Consolidated Group

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Restated*
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, 
loans to and from subsidiaries, bills and leases.

The totals for each category of financial instruments measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting policies to 
these financial statements, are as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  7,318  4,980 

Loans and receivables 7  20,309  20,928 

 27,627  25,908 

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 18,799 20,527

Other financial liabilities 13 147 -

Borrowings 14  19,136  22,852 

38,082 43,379

NOTE 23:  Financial Risk Management
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Subsequent to period end the remaining 1,596,774 shares granted under the GLIP were forfeited by the rights holders and shares 
granted were returned to the Company. 

* Amounts have been restated to correct the error detailed in Note 25
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NOTE 23:  Financial Risk Management (Cont) 
 
Financial Risk Management Policies 
A finance committee consisting of senior executives of the Group meet on a regular basis to analyse financial risk exposure and to 
evaluate treasury management strategies in the context of the most recent economic conditions and forecasts. 
 
The committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its financial targets, whilst 
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. 
 
The committee operates under the direction of the Board of Directors.  In conjunction with the committee, the Board reviews the current 
strategies on a regular basis, including the use of hedging derivative instruments, credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.	
				     
							        
Specific Financial Risk Exposure and Management 
The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and 
credit risk. 
 
a. Interest rate risk 
Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a future change 
in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments.  The Group is also exposed to earnings 
volatility on floating rate instruments. 
 
The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposure on long term financing using a blend of fixed and floating interest 
rate debt. 
 
On 8 May 2017 the Group entered an interest rate swap agreement which the Group has designated as a hedge against the variability 
in future interest rate payments due on $11,000,000. The terms of the agreement effectively convert the variable interest rate payments 
due to fixed rate of 3.99%.  
 
b. Foreign currency risk 
Exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies arises from the Group’s overseas sales and purchases, which are primarily denominated 
in US dollars (USD). 
 
To mitigate the Group’s exposure, non AUD cash flows are monitored and forward exchange contracts are entered into in accordance 
with the Group’s risk management policy. Due to the nature of USD denominated transactions, being relatively small in size and 
frequent, it is not practical to formally designate forward contracts as hedging instruments, rather management consider these contracts 
to be part of economic hedge arrangements.  The Group continues to assess the use of derivative financial instruments and forward 
exchange contracts to minimise the impact of fluctuations on earnings.	  
 
c. Liquidity risk										           
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations 
related to financial liabilities.  The Group manages risk through the following mechanisms:				     
 - preparing forward looking cash flow analysis in relation to operational, investing and financing activities	

 - monitoring undrawn credit facilities								      

 - maintaining a reputable credit profile									       

-  managing credit risk related to financial assets								      

-  investing only in surplus cash with major financial institutions							     

 - comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets 
 
The Group’s policy is to ensure no more than 20% of borrowings should mature in any 12-month period. 
 
The table below reflect’s an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.  Bank bills have been disclosed in 
accordance with the approved budgeted repayment schedule and facility terms as management do not consider that there is any 
material risk that the Bank will terminate such facilities.  The Bank does however maintain the right to terminate the facilities without 
notice should the Group breach any of the covenants as disclosed in Note 14: Borrowings. 
 
Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectations as to the timing of realisation.  Actual timing may therefore 
differ from the disclosure.  The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual 
settlement dates and does not reflect management’s expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward.
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Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total

Consolidated
Group	

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

Restated*

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

2017 
$000

2016 
$000

*Restated
Financial liabilities due for 
payment
Bank bills  4,448  5,587  17,940  19,444  -    -  22,388  25,031 

Trade and other payables 14,245 14,572  4,554  5,955  -    -    18,799  20,527 

Total expected outflows 18,693 20,159  22,494  25,399  -    -  41,187  45,558 

Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

d. Credit risk analysis
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group. The Group is exposed to this risk for various 
financial instruments for example by granting loans and receivables to customers and placing deposits. The Group's maximum 
exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of the financial assets recognised at reporting date, as summarised below:

Classes of financial assets- carrying amounts:
Cash and cash equivalents  7,318  4,980 

Trade and other receivables  20,309  20,928 

Carrying amount  27,627  25,908 

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and 
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on 
customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group's policy is to only deal with creditworthy counterparties. 

The Group’s management considers that all of the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due for each of the reporting 
dates are of good credit quality.

Some of the unimpaired trade receivables are past due at reporting date. Financial assets past due but not impaired can be shown as 
follows:

Less than 30 days  1,121  803 

30 to 59 days  198  48 

60 to 90 days  82  145 

Greater than 90 days  111  146 

Total  1,512  1,142 

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counter party, however the top 20 customers of the Group 
represents approximately 52% (2016: 50%) of year end receivables.  The class of assets described as Trade and Other Receivables is 
considered the main source of credit risk related to the Group.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality 
external credit ratings.

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis.

Notes To The Financial Statements			
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017		 					   
NOTE 23:  Financial Risk Management (Cont)

* Amounts have been restated to correct the error detailed in Note 25
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The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:		

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose 
carrying value is equivalent to fair value.										        

(ii) Fair values are determined using a discounted cash flow model incorporating current commercial borrowing rates.  The fair values of 
fixed rate bank debt will differ to the carrying values.

(iii) Fair values are determined using a discounted cash flow model incorporating current commercial borrowing rates.  The fair values 
of other loan provided by Macquarie Bank will differ to the carrying values.

All fair values are considered to be level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.  
 
Sensitivity Analysis 
 
The following table illustrates sensitivities to the Group’s exposures to changes in interest rates and exchange rates. The table indicates 
the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable 
that management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is 
independent of other variables.

* Amounts have been restated to correct for the error detailed in Note 25

2017 2016

Consolidated Group	 Footnote Net 
Carrying 

Value 
$000

Net Fair 
Value 
$000

Net 
Carrying 

Value 
$000

Restated*

Net Fair 
Value 
$000 

 

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i)  7,318  7,318  4,980  4,980 

Trade and other receivables (i)  20,309  20,309  20,928  20,928 

Total financial assets  27,627  27,627  25,908  25,908 

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (i) 18,799 18,799 20,527 20,527

Bank bills (ii)  19,136  19,136  22,852  22,852 

Financial liabilities 147 147 - -

Total financial liabilities 38,082 38,082 43,379 43,379

NOTE 23:  Financial Risk Management (Cont)

Net Fair Value 
 
Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying 
values as presented in the statement of financial position.  Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. 
 
Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have 
a material impact on the amounts estimated.  Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below.  Where possible, 
valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets 
that are actively traded.  In this regard, where securities are unlisted and no market quotes are available, fair value is obtained using 
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants. 
 
Differences between fair values and carrying values of financial instruments with fixed interest rates are due to the change in discount 
rates being applied by the market since their initial recognition by the Group.  Most of these instruments which are carried at amortised 
cost (i.e. loan liabilities) are to be held until maturity and therefore the net fair value figures calculated bear little relevance to the Group.

Restated*
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NOTE 23:  Financial Risk Management (Cont)

Consolidated Group

Profit
$000

Equity
$000

Year Ended 30 June 2017
+/- 2% interest rates  +/- 122  +/- 122 

+/- 15% $A/$US  +/- 1,515  +/- 1,515 

+/- 15% $A/EUR  +/- 572  +/- 572

Year Ended 30 June 2016
+/- 2% interest rates  +/- 134  +/- 134 

+/- 15% $A/$US +/- 2,019 +/- 2,019

+/- 15% $A/EUR  +/- 274  +/- 274 

The percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in interest and exchange rates in the previous 12 
months.

NOTE 24:  Legend Corporation Limited Parent Company Information Consolidated Group

2017
$000

2016
$000

Parent entity
Assets

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables  1,155  1,155 

Deferred tax assets  325  325 

Financial assets  36,337  36,337 

Total non-current assets  37,817  37,817 
Total assets  37,817  37,817 
Net assets  37,817  37,817 

Equity
Issued capital  74,083  74,083 

Reserves  346  346 

Accumulated losses (36,612)  (36,612)

Total equity  37,817  37,817 

Financial performance
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 2,620  (3,366)

Total comprehensive income 2,620  (3,366)

Notes To The Financial Statements			
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017		 					   
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Notes To The Financial Statements
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NOTE 25: Correction of Errors

NOTE 26: Company Details
The registered office of the company is:

	 Legend Corporation Limited

	 1 Butler Drive

	 HENDON SA 5014 

The principle places of business are:

	 Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd

	 8 Distribution Place

	 SEVEN HILLS NSW 2147

 
	 Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd

	 1 Butler Drive

	 HENDON SA 5014

During 2017 the Group discovered that goods in transit and prepayment to suppliers had been erroneously reported in sundry payables 
and accrued expenses. As a consequence inventories, prepayments and trade and other payables had been understated. The errors 
have been corrected by restating each of the financial statement lines for prior periods. The following table summaries the impacts on 
the Groups consolidated financial statements:

There is no impact on the Groups basic or diluted earnings per share and no impact on the total operating, investing or financing cash 
flows for the year ended 30 June 2016.

The balance sheet as at 1 July 2015, being the opening position for the 2016 financial year was also restated as follows:

30 June 2016

As Previously 
Reported Adjustment 

 
$000

As Restated 
 

$000
Balance Sheet
Inventories 30,911 1,697 32,608

Prepayments 636 34 670

Trade and other payables (12,841) (1,731) (14,572)

$000

1 July 2015

As previously 
reported Adjustment 

 
$000

As Restated 
 

$000
Balance Sheet
Inventories 28,421 1,360 30,781

Prepayments 872 68 940

Trade and other payables (14,087) (1,428) (15,515)

$000

	 Ecco Pacific Limited & System Control 		
	 Engineering NZ Limited

	 7b Carmont Place

	 MT WELLINGTON, AUCKLAND NZ 1061

	 System Control Engineering Pty Ltd

	 Unit 9 621 Whitehorse

	 MITCHAM VIC 3132
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1.	 In the opinion of the directors of Legend Corporation Limited (‘the Company’):					   

a.	 The consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 30 to 63 and the Remuneration Report in the Directors 
Report are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:					   

	 i. giving a true and fair view of the Groups financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its performance for the financial  year ended 
on that date; and					   

	 ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and 					   
	

b.	 There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts when they become due and payable.		
			 

2.	 There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in Note 11 will be able to meet any 
obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the Company 
and those group entities pursuant to ASIC Corporations (Wholly owned Companies) Instrument 2016/785. 			 

3.	 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the chief executive 
officer and the chief financial officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

4.	 The directors draw attention to Note 1(a) to the consolidated financial statements which includes a statement of compliance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.	

Bruce E Higgins		   
Chairman of Directors		   
Legend Corporation Limited 

23 August 2017		  		  		

Director’s Declaration
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KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG 
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under 
Professional Standards Legislation.

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the shareholders of Legend Corporation Limited 

Report on the audit of the Financial Report 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the Financial Report of Legend 
Corporation Limited (the Company). 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Report 
of the Company is in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001, including:  

• giving a true and fair view of the Group’s 
financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of 
its financial performance for the year ended 
on that date; and 

• complying with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Corporations Regulations 
2001. 

The Financial Report comprises:  

• Consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 
June 2017 

• Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, Consolidated statement of 
changes in equity, and Consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended 

• Notes including a summary of significant accounting 
policies 

• Directors’ Declaration. 

The Group consists of the Company and the entities it 
controlled at the year-end or from time to time during 
the financial year. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit 
of the Financial Report section of our report.  

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

Emphasis of matter - restatement 

We draw attention to Note 25 of the financial report which states that amounts reported in the previously 
issued 30 June 2016 financial report have been restated and disclosed as comparatives in this financial report. 
An unmodified opinion was issued by the predecessor auditor on 19 August 2016 in respect of the prior period 
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
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Key Audit Matters 

The Key Audit Matters we identified are: 

• Carrying value of Hendon Semiconductors 
Pty Ltd and Legend Corporate Services Pty 
Ltd goodwill ($40.1m); and 

• Valuation of inventories ($27.9m) 

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Financial Report of the current period.  

These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of the Financial Report as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Carrying value of Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd and Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd goodwill ($40.1m) 

Refer to Note 10 to the Financial Report. 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Assessment of the carrying value of goodwill held 
within the Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd and 
Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd cash generating 
units (CGUs) is a key audit matter given: 

• the cyclical nature of expenditure within sectors 
impacting the CGUs, which are dependent on 
activity within the key markets such as building 
and construction, and the size, timing and 
length of specific projects delivered can vary  

• the quantum of the goodwill recognised, and  

• the significant judgment required by us in 
evaluating the Directors’ assessment of the 
value, which uses a Value in Use model for the 
CGUs.   

We particularly focused on the assumptions listed 
below: 

1. Budgeted future earnings before interest, tax, 
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), capital 
expenditure and operating costs, in light of the 
cyclical nature of expenditure. 

2. The discount rate applied to forecast cash 
flows. 

3. The working capital assumptions applied to the 
model. 

4. Terminal growth rate 

5. The allocation of corporate overheads to CGUs 

To assess the significant judgements of this key 
audit matter, we involved senior audit team 
members, including valuation specialists, with 
experience in the industry and the valuation 
methodology. 

We involved KPMG valuation specialists and our procedures 
included: 

• We tested design and implementation of the controls for 
management’s assessment of the goodwill and 
intangible assets including key inputs such as budgeted 
future EBITDA, capital expenditure, working capital 
management, operating costs, the discount rate and the 
terminal growth rate. 

• We critically evaluated the key cash flow assumptions by: 

- using our knowledge of previous CGU performance 
and the current business model to assess the Hendon 
Semiconductors Pty Ltd and Legend Corporate 
Services Pty Ltd CGUs’  capacity to achieve future 
EBTIDA growth; 

- using our knowledge of historical capital and operating 
costs and future plans to assess the Group’s 
assumptions in these areas, in light of the cyclical 
nature of the business and specific projects entered 
into. 

- using our knowledge of previous initiatives applied by 
management to manage working capital to assess the 
assumptions applied to the CGUs in this area.  

• We assessed the discount rate and terminal growth rate 
applied against comparable market rates and industry 
trends. 

• We performed sensitivity analysis on key assumptions to 
assess how management had addressed estimation 
uncertainty through alternative assumptions or outcomes 
which could indicate the potential for further write 
downs. 

• We assessed the allocation of corporate overheads to 
CGUs by comparing the allocation methodology to our 
understanding of the business and the criteria in the 
accounting standards. 

• We assessed the Group’s disclosures against the 
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards. 
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Valuation of inventories ($27.9m) 

Refer to Note 8 to the Financial Report. 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The valuation of inventories is a key audit matter 
because of its highly specialised nature which 
results in the Group holding various inventory types 
that can be unique to the equipment they are 
manufactured for. This adds complexity to our 
evaluation of the Group’s assessment of 
obsolescence and net realisable value (NRV) of 
inventories.  

We particularly focused on those estimates listed 
below which significantly impact the valuation: 

1.  Expected selling price of inventory. 

2.  Ageing of aged inventory. 

3.  Future inventory usage estimates.  

In assessing this key audit matter, we used senior 
team members who understand the Group’s 
business, industry and the relevant economic 
environment. 

Our procedures included: 

• We tested the controls relevant to management’s 
valuation of inventories, including authorisation of key 
inputs such as inventory cost, actual selling price of 
inventory and the accuracy of the inventory list based on 
inventory purchased and sold during the year. 

• We analysed the future selling price and resulting gross 
margin for each product to identify evidence of negative 
gross margin and compared this to the inventory 
obsolescence provision.  

• We obtained management’s calculation for the inventory 
obsolescence provision, including the ageing of 
inventory, and considered it against the Group’s 
accounting policies, historic sales trends, analysis of slow 
moving inventory and future usage estimates. 

• We tested the Group’s obsolescence provisioning 
methodology for the year by evaluating a statistical 
sample of products for consistency to underlying records, 
the forecast consumption rate, the obsolescence 
provisioning requirements of the Group’s accounting 
policy and the requirements of the accounting standard. 

 

Other Information 

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Legend Corporation Limited’s annual reporting 
which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor's Report. The Directors are responsible 
for the Other Information.  

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not and 
will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the 
Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion. 

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In 
doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, and 
based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
Auditor’s Report we have nothing to report. 
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 

The Directors are responsible for: 

• preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 

• implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that gives a true 
and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• assessing the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. This includes disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they 
either intend to liquidate the Group and Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative 
but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report 

Our objective is: 

• to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and  

• to issue an Auditor’s Report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
Financial Report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_files/ar2.pdf. This description 
forms part of our Auditor’s Report. 

Report on the Remuneration Report 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of 
Legend Corporation Limited for the year 
ended 30 June 2017 complies with Section 
300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 

Directors’ responsibilities 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report 
in accordance with Section 300A of the Corporations Act 
2001. 

Our responsibilities 

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the 
Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2017.  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 

 

 

KPMG Paul Cenko 
Partner 

  

 Adelaide 

 23 August 2017 
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Additional information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this report is 
set out below.  The information is effective as at 2 August 2017.

Substantial shareholders

The following were substantial shareholders as at 2 August 2017:

Unmarketable Parcels
				    Minimum Parcel Size	 Number of Holders		 Units

Ordinary Shares			   $500.00 at $0.17/unit	            265		   230,264

Securities Exchange Listing 
The Company is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange.

On Market Buy-Back
There is currently no on-market buy back for any of the Company’s securities.

Name Number of fully paid 
ordinary shares held

% 
held

Dowe Holdings Pty Ltd 63,261,896 28.97

Tiga Trading Pty Ltd & Thorney Holdings Pty Ltd & Thorney Pty Ltd 36,850,000 16.88

Keith Knowles 19,677,636 9.01

Holding Holders of 
Ordinary Shares

% of Issued 
Capital

1 – 1000 154 0.01

1,001 – 5,000 265 0.38

5,001 – 10,000 173 0.66

10,001 – 100,000 483 8.31

100,001 – and over 139 90.64

Total number of security holders 1,214 100.00

Voting rights

Ordinary shares Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any 
class of shares, at a meeting of members, on a show 
of hands, each member present (in person, by proxy, 
attorney or representative) has one vote and on a poll, 
each member present (in person, by proxy, attorney or 
representative) has one vote for each fully paid share 
they hold.

Options No voting rights.

Distribution of equity security holders

ASX Additional Information
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Restricted and Escrowed Securities
Shares issued under the Group Level Incentive Plan (GLIP) to key management personnel (KMP) total 1,596,774.  These shares are 
ordinary shares having the same voting rights and rights to dividends as other issued capital.  The shares however can only be traded 
after the repayment of the loan provided by the Company to fund the purchase of these shares. 
 
On 15 August 2017 loans provided to KMP under the GLIP expired. KMP did not exercise their rights to repay the loans. Consequently 
all shares granted under the GLIP were cancelled and the loans extinguished.

Unissued Equity Securities
At the date of this report there are no unissued ordinary shares of Legend Corporation Limited under option. 

Name Number of fully paid 
ordinary shares held

% held

Dowe Holdings Pty Ltd 58,717,778 26.90

UBS Nominees Limited 30,157,500 13.81

HSBC Custody Nominees Australia Limited 20,153,567 9.23

Keith Knowles 12,030,186 5.51

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 9,514,040 4.36

Parks Australia Pty Ltd 4,426,363 2.03

Dowe Family Superannuation Fund 3,250,000 1.49

Est Mrs Edna Knowles 3,221,087 1.485

MFM Properties Pty Ltd 3,180,694 1.46

Mrs Ruth Janine Higgins 3,143,850 1.44

M R and J N Simpson 2,549,473 1.17

Mr Roger Edward Koch 2,247,450 1.03

P and J Higgins 2,000,000 0.92

Mrs Valmae Margaret Buckley 1,872,340 0.86

J and S D Yates 1,800,000 0.82

M and J Potter Pty Ltd 1,600,000 0.73

Milne Investments Pty Ltd 1,500,000 0.69

Mr Con Panayotopoulos 1,375,000 0.63

Backstop Pty Ltd 1,294,118 0.59

Cornish Group Investments Pty Ltd 1,250,000 0.57

TOTAL 165,283,446 75.71
    

Twenty largest shareholders - ordinary shares as at 2 August 2017



71

AUSTRALIA

New South Wales
8 Distribution Place 

Seven Hills NSW 2147

Telephone 133 122

Facsimile   1300 303 310

Queensland
14 Josephine Street

Loganholme QLD 4129

Telephone (61) 7 3801 4223

Facsimile   (61) 7 3801 4229

South Australia 
1 Butler Drive 

Hendon SA 5014

Telephone (61) 8 8401 9888

Facsimile   (61) 8 8244 9520

Victoria
Unit 9

621 Whitehorse Road

Mitcham VIC 3132

Telephone (61) 3 9729 0244

Facsimile   (61) 3 9729 0308

Western Australia
6B Hunt Street

Malaga WA 6090

Telephone (61) 8 9464 8400

Facsimile   (61) 8 9242 4433

NEW ZEALAND

Auckland
70 Carmont Place

Mt Wellington Auckland NZ 1061

Telephone (64) 8 0077 6969

Facsimile   (64) 8 0088 6969

	

Directory of Offices
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